
 

 

 -1- 

 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
MAY 26, 2016 

 

Present: 

Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer     Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner       General Public: See Attached List 

Thomas Good, Commissioner          

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

              

Absent: 

  

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary  

    
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:03 A.M.; with Vice Chair Ryan, 

Commissioner Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Good and Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall present; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the April 28, 2016, South Broward 

Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-Woodall and it 

was carried unanimously. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. REQUEST TO VACATE DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, LAKE EASEMENT, AND LAKE 

MAINTENANCE EASEMENTS WITHIN THE “TARA” PLAT (AKA: DOWNEY 

RANCHES), SUBJECT TO THE DEDICATION OF REPLACEMENT EASEMENTS 

 

District Director Hart stated that South Broward Drainage District (SBDD) received a request 

to release and vacate its interests in various easements located within the “Tara” plat, located in 

the Town of Southwest Ranches (aka: Downey Ranches): 

 

 



 

 

 -2- 

 

The easements in question were all previously dedicated by plat (“Tara” plat, PB 162, PG 20, 

BCR).  The plat dedicated several different types of easements, based on the proposed 

development plan for the property at that time.  The plat also provided for the relocation of the 

existing canal along SW 184th Avenue as part of the construction of the future roadway. 

Director Hart stated that the hydraulics for this area has changed since the plat was recorded; 

the most notable change being the permanent closure of the connection from the SW 184th 

Avenue Canal to the C-11 Canal.  He also noted that the access for the development will now 

be coming off of Griffin Road as opposed to SW 184th Avenue.   

SBDD has reviewed the proposed drainage plan for the proposed development and has 

determined that the plan meets the District criteria.  SBDD and the project engineer also met 

with Broward County, and the County is in agreement with the proposed development plan as 

it relates to the SW 184th Avenue canal and right-of-way.  Any modifications to the location of 

the existing canal will be done by Broward County as part of the future roadway project; and 

provisions for off-site drainage connections will remain in place. 

The request for vacation has been separated into uniform categories of easements as follows: 

 Release and Vacation of 55-foot Drainage Easements  

 Release and Vacation of 50-foot Drainage Easements  

 Release and Vacation of 25-foot Drainage Easements  

 Release and Vacation of 15-foot Lake Maintenance Easements  

 Release and Vacation of 20-foot Lake Maintenance Easement  

 Release and Vacation of a Portion of a Lake Easement  

 

Director Hart reviewed the exhibits that were provided to the Board with this vacation request: 

 A color exhibit of the easements to be vacated; there are a total of 28 individual easements 

to be vacated under this request. 

 A color exhibit of new, replacement easements, which staff is recommending to be 

dedicated as a condition of approval for the vacations; there are a total of 32 individual 

replacement easements to be dedicated.   

 A color exhibit showing the final configuration of all SBDD easements upon completion of 

the vacations and new dedications. 

 An exhibit showing the drainage flow patterns for the surrounding areas, which 

demonstrates that the proposed vacations will not impact the existing drainage patterns; and 

Director Hart noted that for this project, there should be opportunities for improvements for 

the drainage of surrounding, off-site properties.  

There are a total of six (6) separate Release and Vacation requests which include the individual 

sketch & legal descriptions of each easement.    Staff is recommending that as a condition 

approval, the property owner be required to dedicate the new, replacement easements as 

provided, and pay for all legal and recording costs.  Staff has no objections to the request; and 

the reason for this request is to accommodate the updated development plan for the property.  

 



 

 

 -3- 

 

There are no financial impacts to this Agenda Item, other than SBDD administrative costs; all 

other costs will be incurred by the property owner. 

The request is for approval of the six (6) above-mentioned Release and Vacation documents (28 

total easements) as previously dedicated under the “Tara” plat, as recorded in Plat Book 162, 

Page 20, of the Public Records of Broward County, Florida. Said vacations and releases are 

subject to the dedication of new easements across the Downey Ranches property as described 

above and any additional easements as required by SBDD; and reimbursement of all legal and 

recording costs associated with the development of the Downey Ranches property. 

 

 Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval for the Release and Vacation of the Easements 

within the Tara Plat (AKA: Downey Ranches), subject to the dedication of replacement 

easements.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-Woodall. 

 

 Commissioner Minnaugh asked District Director Hart if there will be a Homeowners Association 

(HOA); and whether they will own the two lakes and be responsible for the maintenance, upkeep, 

etc. of such.  District Director replied yes, there will be an HOA, and they will own the lakes and 

be responsible for the maintenance of the entire stormwater management system, including the 

two lakes.  Commissioner Minnaugh commented that the access would be off of SW 184th 

Avenue.  District Director Hart replied no, that access to the development will now be coming 

off of Griffin Road.   

 

 Mr. John Tello, Schwebke Shiskin & Associates, was present to answer questions from the 

Board.   

 

 Commissioner Mersinger commented that the she wanted to make sure that there would not be 

any negative impacts to the surrounding SW Ranches properties as a result of this project and 

this request.  She asked if the capability for drainage, and the capability for retaining the water 

are going to be conducive to preventing flooding.  District Director Hart replied yes; he said that 

some of the easement areas are getting wider, especially along the western boundaries.  He said 

that once the property gets developed, there will actually be an improvement with drainage and 

there will be an allowance for drainage connections from the west.  He commented that the Town 

of SWR is also doing an independent review of the development plan.  Commissioner Mersinger 

asked if the on-site drainage system will connect to the SW 184th Avenue Canal.  District Director 

Hart replied yes.  Mr. Tello agreed and elaborated by saying, that although the scale of the 

drawings may look small, some of the easement areas are actually 75-foot wide retention areas.  

He added that District Director Hart did not mention that the developer has agreed to clean up 

the existing canal; and that they are going to go in and widen it as much as possible.  He said that 

the developer did not just look at their project, but that they also looked at the SBDD canal and 

will be expanding it as much as possible to help convey water.   

 

 Commissioner Minnaugh asked Mr. Tello if Perfect Choice Nursery abuts this property.  He said 

yes, they do; and gave a bit of background about that property and the SW 184th Avenue right-

of-way.  He said that the first approach to the project was to build what was approved (by plat); 

but the issue was that the nursery had not dedicated the right-of-way for SW 184th Avenue yet, 

and when they looked into trying to do the roadway around the nursery and still connect to Griffin 

Road, they could not do it; there was not enough right-of-way there; and so they really did not 

have an option; and Broward County then allowed them to connect to Griffin Road, away from 

the nursery.   The reason for vacating the lake and crossing the lake, etc. is because technically, 



 

 

 -4- 

 

they did not have the right-of-way needed to build SW 184th Avenue.  Mr. Tello also indicated 

that the project will not be adversely impacting the nursery’s drainage. 

 

 Commissioner Good mentioned that there was not a drainage plan included in the Board package, 

and asked if there is piping associated with the on-site drainage plan?  District Director Hart 

replied that the applicant did submit a drainage plan for staff’s review, and that there is some 

piping that is associated with the drainage plan; and there are provisions for piping from off-site 

properties, if those properties in the future are interested in connecting.  The drainage plan shows 

that the roadway will also have piping from the swale system into the lake; and whatever is 

necessary to handle the drainage for the development.  Commissioner Good noted that most of 

the drainage would then be above ground conveyance (through swales).  District Director Hart 

agreed and added that there will also be conveyance through drainage inlets and culverts.    

Commissioner Good understood that the majority of the drainage/conveyance will be through 

swales and retention areas.  Director Hart agreed and stated that there will be an ability for 

connections to the lake or to the SW 184th Avenue Canal.  Mr. Tello clarified that there will be 

pipe connections under the road; and at each lot corner there will be a drainage box and a pipe 

connection to the SW 184th Avenue Canal. Commissioner Good indicated that he was good with 

the provisions for retention/conveyance; and he noted that the on-site drainage system will be 

permitted through SBDD (and not Broward County); and that over time the swale system can 

get lost to natural growth unless they are properly maintained.  And the District has a 5-year 

recertification; and said that this is the first time he has had questions regarding above-ground 

conveyance (swales), and the operating permit and the re-certification; and if the swale system 

will be part of the re-certification.  He asked what the procedure would be for the engineer to 

certify the operating component of above-ground conveyance (swales).  District Director Hart 

explained that the engineer would need to do an inspection of the swale system; similar to what 

the District requires on other, similar drainage systems; and that the swale system would be part 

of the re-certification for the property.  He said that the swales are an integral part of the drainage 

system, and that the engineer would be required to inspect those and to verify that all the boxes 

were open and functioning properly; and it would be part of the 5-year recertification to the 

District.   Commissioner Good asked for clarification that the swale itself would be inspected.  

District Director Hart replied that the swales will be included; and that the purpose of the 5-year 

recertification is to prevent the swales from getting overgrown with vegetation and from not 

functioning properly, etc.   

 

 Chair Hodges elaborated further, and explained that the Miramar Park of Commerce has a similar 

drainage system with swales and flumes, and that they are required to inspect the swales as part 

of their 5-year recertification and verify that the above-ground conveyance (swales) and below-

ground conveyance (pipes) are functioning the same as when it was designed.  District Director 

Hart shared another example of the Westfork Plaza shopping center where he had met earlier this 

week with the engineer and property owner and walked the perimeter swales; and discussed how 

the swale had changed over time.  He said that this does happen; and that when the water moves, 

it picks up all the silt and loose sediments and deposits it in the swales.  He said that Westfork 

Plaza will be re-grading portions of their swale as well, because it’s too high in comparison to 

the original design.   

 

 Commissioner Minnaugh restated her original question to Mr. Tello, asking if there was going 

to be an HOA for this development.  Mr. Tello assured her that there will be an HOA.  She 

wanted confirmation that there will be language in such a way, that the HOA can enforce the 

maintenance requirements for the drainage system (by the induvial lot owners).  Mr. Tello replied 



 

 

 -5- 

 

yes; and District Director Hart stated that SBDD would be reviewing the HOA documents and 

also including the maintenance requirements in the Maintenance Agreement. 

 

 The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

B. SBDD RESOLUTION NO. 2016-03 – AGREEMENT WITH BROWARD COUNTY TO 

AMEND THE NOTATION ON THE FACE OF THE “SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE 

DISTRICT” PLAT 

 

District Director Hart presented SBDD Resolution No. 2016-03 which authorizes SBDD to 

enter into an Agreement with Broward County for an Amendment of Notation on the “South 

Broward Drainage District” plat (“Plat”).  The Plat was approved by the Broward County Board 

of County Commissioners on April 18, 1989 and was recorded in Plat Book 144 Page 12 of the 

public records of Broward County. 

 

District Director Hart said that earlier this year, SBDD petitioned Broward County to amend 

the notation on the face of the Plat to allow for the expansion of the District’s maintenance 

facility building.  The Broward County Commission approved this request at its meeting of 

April 26, 2016.  As part of the approval process, Broward County requires the District to enter 

into an “Agreement for Amendment of Notation of Plat” (Agreement). 

The costs associated with this request are included under the SBDD 5-year Capital Improvement 

Plan (CIP) for the expansion of the District’s maintenance facility. 

District Director Hart said that this will be the final piece of the puzzle for the plat, site plan and 

preliminary approvals for the building expansion.  He said that the District is now waiting to 

get a price from the architectural firm for the design and preparation of the bid documents for 

the building.  He hopes to have this before the Board for approval at the June Board meeting.  

He said this request is a requirement by the County in order to make that Plat Amendment final. 

District Director Hart requested approval of SBDD Resolution 2016-03 – Authorizing SBDD 

to enter into the Agreement with Broward County for an Amendment of Notation on the “South 

Broward Drainage District” Plat (Plat Book 144, Page 12, BCR), located in Southwest Ranches, 

Florida.   

 Commissioner Minnaugh made a motion for the Approval of Resolution 2016-03 which 

authorizes the District to enter into the Agreement between SBDD and Broward County to amend 

the Notation on the face of the “South Broward Drainage District” Plat.  Commissioner Santana-

Woodall seconded the motion. 

 

 Commissioner Mersinger commented that the District has gone through so many hoops to create 

a garage.  District Director Hart commented that this is the common procedure; and he said that 

there are still quite a few hoops that the District still has to go through.  He said that he hopes 

they can break ground by the beginning of the next calendar year.  

 

 The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

   



 

 

 -6- 

 

C. OTHER 

 

 Westfork Plaza Shopping Center – District Director Hart said that as a follow-up to the 

discussion at the last Board meeting, he met with the engineer who is working on the Westfork 

Plaza improvements on Dykes Road and Pines Boulevard, and also with the owner of the 

shopping center; and discussed with them what needs to be done; and shared an example of a 

maintenance plan that the District will require as part of the permit.  He said they understood 

the importance of it, and were appreciative that he had taken the time to meet with them.  They 

will be doing annual maintenance work there as part of the permit approval. 

 

 Visit to South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) – District Director Hart said 

that Mr. Robert Franklin (SBDD Operations and Maintenance Manager) and he visited 

SFWMD and met with their operations staff and toured their control room and saw how they 

operate it.  He felt that it was important to meet with these individuals face-to-face and put a 

face to the names and have one-on-one discussions, since these are the people that SBDD staff 

communicates with when there are problems with the SBDD system.  It went very well.  He 

said that in past days, SBDD has been preparing for hurricane season by making sure that all 

the pumps are up and running and in operational condition.  

 
05. Attorney Report: 
 
 Attorney Bell reminded the Board that the last day for the qualifying period for the upcoming election 

is June 20th through June 24th, from noon to noon.   
 
06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall and it was carried unanimously.  

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

     

   Commissioner Minnaugh reminded District Director Hart about the Finance Meeting that was held 

earlier this week.  District Director Hart said that the Finance & Investment Committee met this week 

and that the District has a number of CD’s which will be maturing between now and the end of the 

year.  He said that this will be presented at the June Board meeting with a recommendation from the 

Committee for Board approval.   

 

   Commissioner Mersinger expressed that as the Board had discussed the 5-year recertification process 

earlier, she feels the District does not have any teeth to do much about the non-compliance of a 5-

year recertification.  District Director Hart responded that the District does have some teeth and 

explained the process that the District goes through regarding someone who is non-compliant 

regarding the 5-year recertification.   

 

   He said that the District has a flow chart that they follow regarding the 5-year recertification process: 

 SBDD sends out a notice that the 5-year recertification is due. 

 SBDD then follows up on these notices. 

 If the District does not get a response, a “Notice of Non-Compliance” is sent that makes the 

property owner aware that the 5-year recertification is required. 

 If the District does not get a response within 30 days, a Notice of Violation is issued. 



 

 

 -7- 

 

 Finally, a copy of the Notice of Violation is sent to the local building department. 

 

   He said that most people do not like having a Notice of Violation on their property.  He said that 

eventually they will need something from the District, whether it’s a permit, a signature, etc.  He said 

that if they go to the building department for a permit, the building department will flag it, and will 

require that they get SBDD cleared up first.   

 

   Commissioner Santana-Woodall asked District Director Hart if SBDD has the ability to fine the 

property owner if they ignore the notices.  Attorney Bell replied that the District does not have a fine 

mechanism, but the District can get an injunction or a lien on the property.  

 

   Commissioner Mersinger asked if the District has the right to go onto the property and make the 

repair.  District Director Hart stated that on some properties, where there is a Maintenance and 

Indemnification Agreement in place, the District does have the right to go in and do the repair, and 

then charge the property owner for it.     

 

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 30, 2016 at 8:00 a.m.  

 

Adjournment at 8:50 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

 

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 

/rim 




























































